COMMERCIAL PROVINCIAL PLUMBING AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN:

EACH OF THE UNIONIZED EMPLOYERS IN THE PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER TRADE DIVISION OF THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY ON WHOSE BEHALF CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC., AS THE REPRESENTATIVE EMPLOYERS' ORGANIZATION HAS ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT

(Hereinafter Referred to as the "EMPLOYER")

- AND -

UTILITY LOCAL UNION 179 OF SASKATCHEWAN OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA:

(Hereinafter Referred to as the "UNION")

Effective August 11, 2024 Expires August 31, 2028

SASKATCHEWAN STANDARDS OF UNION CONSTRUCTION

- HARMONY
- •QUALITY & PRODUCTIVITY
- •SKILLS
- MARKETABILITY
- INDIRECT COSTS (FAIRNESS/REAL COSTS)

Collective Bargaining Agreements and the operations of the participants, when assessed beside these standards, should not detract from any standard but should complement and raise each standard.

Adopted December 17, 1993

Trade Unions Affiliated With:

Unionized Employers as Represented By:

Saskatchewan Provincial Building And Construction Trades Council CLR Construction Labour Relations Association of Saskatchewan Inc.

Table of Contents

TRADE AUTONOMY	4
ARTICLE 1:00 OBJECTS AND SCOPE	4
ARTICLE 2:00 EFFECTIVE DATE	
ARTICLE 3:00 GEOGRAPHICAL JURISDICTION	4
ARTICLE 4:00 UNION SECURITY	
ARTICLE 5:00 UNION RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	6
ARTICLE 6:00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 7:00 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	8
ARTICLE 8:00 TRANSPORTATION, TRAVELLING TIME, ROOM AND BOARD, (OUT OF TOWN	
WORK)	
ARTICLE 9:00 WORKING CONDITIONS	
ARTICLE 10:00 SAFETY AND PRODUCTIVITY	13
ARTICLE 11:00 STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	14
ARTICLE 12:00 ANNUAL HOLIDAY PAY	15
ARTICLE 13:00 COMMERCIAL "CORE" WAGE RATES "TOTAL PACKAGE"	15
ARTICLE 14:00 APPRENTICES	16
ARTICLE 15:00 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ARBITRATION	17
ARTICLE 16:00 JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES	17
ARTICLE 17:00 JOINT COMMITEE BOARD	17
ARTICLE 18:00 EDUCATIONAL TRUST FUND	18
ARTICLE 19:00 HEALTH AND WELFARE	18
ARTICLE 20:00 PENSION TRUST FUND	
ARTICLE 21:00 SASKATCHEWAN PROVINCIAL PIPE TRADES ASSOCIATION INDUSTRY SE	RVICE
TRUST FUND	
ARTICLE 22:00 CANADIAN U.A. TRAINING FUND	21
ARTICLE 23:00 POLITICAL ACTION/GOVERNMENT RELATIONS TRUST FUND	
ARTICLE 24:00 INTERNATIONAL TRAINING FUND	22
ARTICLE 25:00 REMITTANCE PROCESS	
ARTICLE 26:00 PROVISIONS FOR OTHER RELATED AGREEMENTS	23
ARTICLE 27:00 PRODUCTIVITY ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE	
ARTICLE 28:00 EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM	25
ARTICLE 29:00 BUILDING TRADES PER CAPITA	
ARTICLE 30:00 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT FEES	25
ARTICLE 31:00 CONTINUITY OF WORK	26
APPENDIX "A" - DEFINITIONS	28
APPENDIX "B" - ENABLING	
ENABLING CLAUSE INFORMATION SHEET	33
APPENDIX "C" - REQUEST FOR WORKERS FORM	34
PROVINCIAL RESIDENTIAL AGREEMENT	35
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING	38
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING	39
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING	41

TRADE AUTONOMY

The Trade Autonomy of this agreement shall include the work performed by the Employer, and assigned to the Employees working under the terms of this agreement, and shall be consistent with the historical practices in existence between the United Association and the Mechanical Employer of the Moose Jaw area.

In recognition of the above work jurisdictional claims, it is understood that the assignment of work and the settlement of jurisdictional disputes with other Building Trades Organizations shall be, when parties to this agreement mutually agree, adjusted in accordance with the procedure established by the Impartial Disputes Board or any successor agency of the Building Trades Department.

ARTICLE 1:00 OBJECTS AND SCOPE

- 1:01 The purpose of this agreement is to establish a mutual satisfactory relationship between the parties signed to the agreement, to provide a method of promptly resolving disputes and grievances, to establish and maintain satisfactory work conditions, hours of work and salaries, for all Employees working under the provisions of this agreement.
- 1:02 To provide the Employer and the Union with the flexibility to protect the work of the United Association. This agreement establishes a Plumber Agreement, and may permit additional agreements, or addenda as agreed to by the Employer and the Union.
- 1:03 Unless it is otherwise mutually agreed upon, "Industrial work" as defined under Article 9:08 shall not be covered by this agreement.
- 1:04 It is further agreed that if and when the Employer, or any shareholder(s) holding a major equity or control therein, shall perform or shall cause to be performed any work covered by this agreement under its own name or under the name of another as a person, corporation, company, partnership, enterprise, associate, combination or joint venture this agreement shall be applicable to all such work performed under the name of the Employer or the name of any other person, corporation, company, partnership, enterprise, associate, combination or joint venture. No Employer shall operate with spin-off companies on any work covered by this agreement.

ARTICLE 2:00 EFFECTIVE DATE

2:01 This agreement shall become effective August 11, 2024 and remain in force until August 31, 2028, and thereafter from year to year provided that either party may, not less than sixty (60) days nor more than one hundred and twenty (120) days before the expiry date thereof, give notice in writing to the other party to terminate this agreement or negotiate a revision thereof.

ARTICLE 3:00 GEOGRAPHICAL JURISDICTION

3:01 The jurisdictional area of this agreement shall be the Province of Saskatchewan.

4 | Page

ARTICLE 4:00 UNION SECURITY

4:01 Every Employee who is now or hereafter becomes a Member of the Union shall maintain their membership in the Union as a condition of their employment, and every new Employee whose employment commences hereafter shall, within thirty (30) days after the commencement of their employment, apply for and maintain membership in the Union as a condition of their employment, provided that any Employee in the appropriate bargaining unit who is not required to maintain their membership or apply for and maintain their membership in the Union shall, as a condition of their employment, tender to the Union the periodic dues uniformly required to be paid by the Members of the Union.

4:02

- a) The Employer agrees that the hiring of Employees will be done through the Local Union Office. The Employer, when needing workers, shall notify the Union. When requested, the Union will undertake to supply the Employer with a complete list of all available workers.
- b) The Employer may name request all new employees from the Local Union's OUT-OF-WORK LIST. Name requests shall be in writing, identifying the name, address and phone number of the Employer and the name of the worker(s) being requested. The UA Local 179 Request for Workers form included in Appendix C shall be the applicable form used by electronic submission to the Union.
- c) If qualified workers are not available from the Union within forty-eight (48) hours of request, the Employer may hire qualified workers from any available source and such workers will come under the terms of Article 4:01. The Union recognizes that the Employer job requirements are a factor of qualifications.
- d) Work referral slips will not knowingly be issued by the Union to members who are inactive while on the EFAP Alcohol & Drug program nor will these members be knowingly dispatched to a contractor and/or job site by the Union, nor will they be knowingly be hired by the Employer.
- 4:03 Within thirty (30) days of commencing employment all Employees must have a dispatch or referral slip issued by the Local Union.
 - The slip shall identify the worker's classification (Level Two Journeyperson, Level One Journeyperson, Probationary Member, Senior Apprentice, etc.), the expiry dates of the worker's certifications for the CODC Interactive "Rights and Responsibilities" course and the SCOT course and a space for the termination date of the Employee.
- 4:04 Dispatching of workers may also be done by telephone followed by facsimile or electronic transmission.
- 4:05 On termination, the Employer shall return a copy of the Employee's dispatch slip to the Union by facsimile, to which the Employer has added the Employee's termination date.
- 4:06 Every Employee within the scope of this agreement shall accept as a condition of being hired or re-hired and continuing to be employed, to have deducted from their wages due to

5|Page

him/her, and the Employer agrees to deduct from such wages due to any such Employee, AUTHORIZED BENEFITS AS SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, INITIATION FEES, AND DUES ASSESSMENTS, and submit all monies so deducted along with a list of names from whom such deductions have been made to the person designated by the Union, on or before fifteenth (15th) of the month following for each month that said deductions have been made.

4:07 In the hiring of Apprentices, the Employer will give preference to those duly indentured Apprentices that are registered as unemployed at the Local Union Office.

4:08 Stewards

Unless required by the Employer, there shall be no non-working Steward(s). The Steward shall be a working Journeyperson who has completed a Steward Training Course applicable to this trade. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing the name(s) of its Steward(s).

ARTICLE 5:00 UNION RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 5:01 By mutual agreement, the authorized Representative of the Local Union shall have access to jobs and shops at all times providing the Employee's work is not unnecessarily interfered with.
- 5:02 The Local Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the appointment of a Shop Steward who shall be a working Journeyperson of the Local Union. The Employer recognizes that the Shop Steward is acting for the workers as a whole and shall not be discriminated against for expressing the wishes of the workers. The Shop Steward may be called upon by the Employer to assist in the settlement of grievances. The Shop Steward shall be allowed reasonable time for the performance of their duty, provided they have notified the Employer of the probable time required to fulfil that duty.
- 5:03 <u>Reduction in Crews</u> Should it be necessary to reduce the working force on the job, the Employer agrees to lay off or terminate their Employees in the following sequence:
 - 1. Potential Members.
 - 2. Based on qualifications and ability.
 - i. Members of a Sister Local Union (Travel Card Member).
 - ii. Retired Members of the Local Union.
 - iii. Members of the Local Union.

Employers signatory to both the Commercial and Industrial U.A. Program will not have the *PERMANENT EMPLOYEES**** affected by Step 2 (i) and (ii) as listed above.

5:04 Employees absent or sick shall notify their Employer or their Representative on the first day off, and shall notify the Employer or their Representative in sufficient time before they return to work. Employees shall not leave the job without permission from the Employer or their Representative, except in the case of an emergency.

PERMANENT EMPLOYEES*** (See Appendix Definition)

5:05 **Sub-Contract Clause**

- a) The Employer agrees not to sublet or contract work out that is normally done by their *Company(s)****. Where such work is contracted out, it shall be done under the terms and conditions of this agreement, or other related agreements, or as otherwise approved by the Union.
- b) The Employer undertakes to co-operate and work with the Union to extend the terms and conditions of this agreement to its sub-contractors when performing the work that is not normally done by the Employer.
- 5:06 Employees serving on the Joint Committee Board or as Trustees of the various funds covered by the terms of this agreement, shall be allowed time off to attend to Union business after making arrangements with the Employer.
- 5:07 <u>Discrimination</u> No employee shall be discriminated against by the Employer because of Union activities or because of any right provided by law or by this agreement.
- 5:08 <u>Violation of Occupational Health provisions of the Saskatchewan Employement Act</u> It is understood and agreed that the Employers and Party of the Second Part shall at all times comply with the Accident Prevention Regulations made pursuant to the current Occupational Health and Safety Provisions of the Saskatchewan Employment Act, and any refusal on the part of the worker to work or to continue to work in contravention of such regulations shall not be deemed a breach of this agreement.
- 5:09 Should the Union sign any agreement containing lesser wages or conditions than is specified in this agreement, then such agreement shall be made available to all signatory Employer(s) hereto.
- 5:10 Any Journeyperson who quits without a bona fide reason on a job will have to serve a two (2) week penalty on the out-of-work list before getting dispatched again.

ARTICLE 6:00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 6:01 The Union agrees that it is the exclusive function of the Employer to exercise the usual function of management including, but not so as to restrict the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - a) To conduct its business in all respects in accordance with its commitment and responsibilities, including the right to manage the jobs, locate, extend, curtail or cease operations, to determine the kinds and locations of machines, tools, and equipment to be used and the schedules of jobs and work, and judge the suitability of Employees for various types of work and to maintain order, discipline and efficiency. All the foregoing to be consistent with good safety practice.
 - b) To select, hire, discharge, transfer, promote, lay off, or otherwise discipline Employees, however, a claim by an Employee that they have been discharged without reasonable cause shall be subject to the Grievance Procedure.

- c) To make, alter from time to time, and enforce reasonable rules of conduct and procedure to be observed by the Employees during the hours for which they are being compensated for.
- 6:02 It is agreed that these functions shall not be exercised in a manner inconsistent with the express provisions of this agreement.
- 6:03 The Union shall not discriminate against an Employer because of any law or management right.

ARTICLE 7:00 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- 7:01 The following sections of this Article are intended to define the normal hours of work and shall not be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week or of days of work per week.
- 7:02 Eight (8) hours shall constitute a regular work day; forty (40) hours shall constitute a regular week. The regular working day shall be from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday to Friday inclusive. By mutual consent the lunch hour may be reduced from one (1) hour to one-half (1/2) hour with the regular work day terminating at 4:30 p.m. The starting and quitting time of the regular work day may be varied by mutual consent.
- 7:03 All hours worked in excess of the regular work day as established in Article 7:02 shall be classified as premium time and paid at 1.5 times the rate.

Scheduled overtime shall be avoided whenever possible. Monday through Friday each Employee must have worked all the available scheduled straight time hours of a day before receiving overtime pay for hours worked thereafter on the same day. Further, an employee must work all available straight time hours in a week before receiving overtime pay in the same week.

Saturday (or Friday in the case of a compressed work week) may be used as a make-up day when weather conditions have caused lost time during the regular work week. Work performed on a make-up day shall be paid at straight time the Employee's regular rate of pay.

As per Article 11:01 when worked, the Employer agrees to pay for Statutory Holidays at double time the rate.

When an employee works excessive overtime and a rest beak of at least eight (8) hours does not occur before they report for the next regular shift, all hours worked thereafter shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate until an eight (8) hour rest break occurs.

7:04 On projects where circumstances make it necessary to adjust the regular hours of work, such shift(s) will be performed during any time of day or night. For a single shift, the conditions of 7:02 shall prevail.

Employees assigned to the second or third shift shall receive a shift premium of two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) of regular pay for all hours worked. There shall be no pyramiding of premium pay. Employees shall receive sixteen (16) working hours' notice for shift work.

- 7:05 In occupied premises where it is deemed necessary to secure the work, the work day and the work week may be adjusted. Such adjustment will be done on a project-to- project basis through the enabling provision of this agreement.
- 7:06 Employees receive a minimum payment every time they report for work, other than for overtime. Employees who report to work must receive at least three hours pay at the employee's hourly wage, even if there is no work to do or the employee works for less than three hours.
- 7:07 <u>Compressed Work Week</u> When mutually agreed to between the Employer and the Employee, and when sanctioned by the Union, a compressed work week consisting of four (4), ten (10) hour days may be worked at straight time.
- 7:08 When an Employee is requested by the Employer to standby and be available to perform work outside the normal workday the Employee shall be paid an allowance of one (1) hour per day at the Employee's base rate of pay per day on call. All qualified Employees must accept standby duties on an evenly distributed rotational basis.

The Employer will provide a suitable communication device to an Employee when on standby who shall only use such communication device for company business or in an emergency situation.

ARTICLE 8:00 TRANSPORTATION, TRAVELLING TIME, ROOM AND BOARD, (OUT OF TOWN WORK)

The transportation expense shall be the vehicle allowance rate published by Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA") for the maximum rate (generally for the first $5,000 \, \mathrm{km}$). The transportation expense shall be adjusted as the CRA rate changes and become effective on the same date as the next wage adjustments.

8:01 Out of town work means work performed outside the city limits of Prince Albert, Saskatoon, Moose Jaw, and Regina.

8:02

a) Work performed within a radius of fifty (50) kilometres from the city limits listed in Article 8:01 is considered to be free zone (no travel time work).

b) <u>Accommodations</u>

For work where overnight stays are required, the Employer shall supply the Employee with one of the following options:

i. a mutually agreed to suitable room (accommodation shall be assigned on the basis of one person to a room) and board

In lieu of providing board, the Employer shall supply each Employee board allowance of fifty-five dollars (\$55.00) per day.

ii. or a mutually agreed room and board allowance,

c) <u>Transportation</u>

- i. For Travel outside of the free zone, the employer shall reimburse the workers for the actual time of travel at the Employee's regular rate of pay, beyond the boundary of the free zone.
- ii. On out-of-town jobs, where the employee is staying at temporary domicile, the employer shall pay the actual travel time at the Employee's regular rate of pay for time spent travelling beyond the boundary of the project free zone, should no suitable accommodations be available within the project's free zone.
- 8:03 Notwithstanding Article 8:04, the signatories hereto agree that no transportation, travel time, and room and board shall apply to those hired from local area sources. The free zone applicable to a Member hired from local area sources shall be the same fifty (50) kilometres free zone from the city, town, village, or community where they maintain residence as would apply to residents of areas described in Article 8:01.
- 8:04 On out of town work and projects, the Employer may hire qualified persons to the extent of seventy-five (75) percent of their work force from local area sources. The first preference of employment will be given to qualified members of the United Association. Second preference will be given to qualified residents of Saskatchewan. When new Employee(s) are hired, such Employee(s) shall be cleared through the Local Union Office and pay appropriate Union Dues and other approved deductions.
- 8:05 When Employees are requested to provide their own transportation beyond the free zone area, they shall be reimbursed the maximum CRA rate per kilometre. It is further agreed that the Employee's personal vehicle shall be used strictly as a mode of their conveyance.
- When the Statutory Holiday falls on a regular work day, and it is not worked, the Employee shall be provided with meals and accommodations for that day.
- 8:07 By project agreement, the Employer and the Union may provide for a job site free zone.

ARTICLE 9:00 WORKING CONDITIONS

Employee supplied tools are to be of standard quality appropriate for the Plumber/Pipefitter trade.

9:01 Level One Journeyperson Plumbers will provide their own personal hand tools as listed below:

14" Pipe WrenchFlaring Tools18" Pipe WrenchMeasuring Rule

Line Laser level

Strap Wrench
3 pound Ball Pein Hammer
Wirsbo Tool
Torpedo Level
Combination Square
1" and 2" Copper Tubing Cutters
Basic Set of Screw

1" and 2" Copper Tubing Cutters Basic Set of Screw Pair of Standard Pliers Drivers of Standard,

Pair of Pump Pliers

Phillips and Robertson Head
Basin Wrench

Socket Set – ¼ & 3/8 Drive

1-10" & 1-8" Crescent WrenchSpud WrenchKey Hole SawHack SawFlat Cold ChiselCentre Punch

Tool Box (for storing their Updated Plumbing Code personal hand tools) Updated Gas Code

9:02 Level One Journeyperson Steamfitters/Pipefitters will provide their own personal hand tools as listed below:

18" Pipe Wrench 14" Pipe Wrench

3 Pound Ball Pein Hammer 1" and 2" Copper Tubing Cutters

Flaring Tool Measuring Rule Plumb Bob 24" Level

Torpedo Level Combination Square
Basic Set of Screw Drivers Pair of Standard Pliers
Standard Phillips and Robertson Head Pair of Inter-Locking Pliers

1-12" & 1-10" Crescent Wrench

Centre Punch

A Wrap Around

Tool Box (for storing their

Vice-Grip Plier

Hack Saw

Flat Cold Chisel

Updated Gas Code

personal hand tools)

Gas Fitters Tools shall include:

Plumber Journeyperson List Manometer 24" Pipe Wrench Multimeter

Updated Gas Code Book

Service Technician Tools shall include:

Category 3 Minimum Multi-Meter (600V) Impact Drill (Year 3) including amp clamp (in year 3) Sawzall (Year 3)

Cordless Drill (Year 1) Small Hammer Drill (Year 3)

9:03 Apprentice Plumbers and Steamfitters/Pipefitters shall gradually accumulate their own personal hand tools. Upon completion of probationary period, the 1st Year Apprentice shall provide for themself the following tools:

14" Pipe Wrench 10" Pipe Wrench

Ball Pein Hammer 2" Copper Tubing Cutters
Pair of Standard Pliers 1" Copper Tubing Cutters
Tool Box (for personal tools) 1-10" & 1-8" Crescent Wrench

Torpedo Level Measuring Rule

Centre Punch Basic Set of Screw Drivers
Updated Plumbing Code Standard, Philips & Robertson

Hack Saw

Apprentices will add to their tool inventory until they have the full Level One Journeyperson hand tools at the completion of their third year.

5th Year Apprentices and Journeypersons to have full set of Level One Journeyperson tools.

9:04 Hand tools shall be made available by the Employer at cost. All replacement parts, or worn out or broken tools shall be supplied by the shop at no expense to the Employee.

Measuring rule replacement parts or refills will be limited to one per year.

- 9:05 Employer shall supply all power and special tools.
- 9:06 The Employer agrees to provide suitable storage for tools.
- 9:07 If an Employee's tools are lost or destroyed due to fire, flood or forcible entry of their personal tool box, job box or job shack while on the job site, they shall immediately be replaced by the Employer. Any Employee's tools which are stolen or destroyed while contained within an Employer owned or operated vehicle at any location shall be replaced immediately by the Employer. In the event of theft by forcible entry, the Police Department and Management must be notified immediately. Any employee tools not listed on the appropriate tool list will not be covered for loss unless they have been identified on a separate list and approved by the Employer for coverage.
- 9:08 <u>Definition of Industrial and Commercial Work at Industrial Sites:</u> For the purpose of this agreement, an Industrial Plant or Project shall mean Manufacturing, Production and Processing Plants [examples: pulp and paper plants, sawmills, distilleries, breweries, bottling plants (other than plants for carbonated beverages), glass plants, chemical plants, oil refineries, gas or scrubbing plants, fertilizer plants, environmental systems for industrial plants, sewage treatment and water treatment for industrial use, heavy water plants, nuclear and atomic energy plants, etc.]; Mining (including offshore drilling platforms and rigs); Transmission Facilities which includes meter stations, valve stations, pumping stations, compressor stations, drilling rigs and tank farms, dams, hydroelectric projects, and all facilities used in the generation of electricity including converter stations and switch yards.
 - a) On Industrial Sites where the contractor is installing only process piping or where the contractor is simultaneously installing process piping, heating, comfort control and/or plumbing piping, then ALL such work shall be classified INDUSTRIAL.
 - b) If process piping and heating, comfort control systems, or plumbing piping is being installed on the site by more than one contractor, then:
 - i. The contractor installing process piping shall have their work classified INDUSTRIAL.
 - ii. The contractor installing only heating, comfort control systems, and/or plumbing piping shall have their work classified COMMERCIAL.
 - c) All heating, comfort control systems, and/or plumbing piping on camp and administration buildings shall be classified COMMERCIAL.
- 9:09 Two (2) work breaks shall be allowed each day during normal working hours of shift. One (1) work break shall be allowed for every two (2) hours of overtime worked. If overtime is

to follow the regular work shift, a work break shall be allowed before commencing overtime provided that the overtime work is expected to extend beyond one (1) hour duration. Ten (10) minutes shall constitute this work break and the workers shall not abuse this privilege. Employees shall not leave their work station for work breaks except in adverse climatic conditions. Under no circumstances will the Employee be allowed to leave the job site.

9:10 When Employees are laid off or dismissed for cause, they shall be paid all monies due them on the next regular pay run. When Employees are not paid in accordance with the above, they shall be paid two (2) hours at the straight time rate per regular working day they are kept waiting beyond that provided above.

ARTICLE 10:00 SAFETY AND PRODUCTIVITY

10:01 Safety Orientation

All Employees shall be certified in Safety Orientation. Safety Orientation shall consist of three parts: PART 1 - the CODC Interactive Rights and Responsibilities course (renewal required after five years), PART 2 - the SCOT course (renewal required after five years) or equivalent and PART 3 - Employer or Owner Project Specific Training.

Workers being dispatched to an Employer must have obtained certification in PART 1 and PART 2 as well as Harness Training, Aerial Lift Platform and confined space training. As a condition of employment each Employee must maintain certification in Part 1 and Part 2.

Employees with over one year of service shall be on the payroll and paid while receiving training.

The parties agree that the first preference fo training should be through the union's training centres.

In the case of urgent training that is unable to be done by the union, the parties agree that reimbursement shall be on a case by case basis and agreed to by the Business Manager.

Forepersons must obtain certification in either the CODC Better SuperVision course or the UA Forepersons course (including completion of the classroom component, Leadership for Safety Excellence and the on-the-job course field evaluation report). This course is to be completed within the first year of being promoted to the Foreperson position. Employees shall not be on the payroll or paid while receiving this training. The Employer will not be required to pay for either course.

Employees shall not be on the payroll or paid while receiving PART 1 & 2 training. All other costs for registration, certification or any other costs related to the training and certification in the CODC Interactive Rights and Responsibilities course, the SCOT course or equivalent shall be paid for by the Union or by the Educational Trust Fund.

The Employer or Owner shall provide to each Employee before commencing work with PART 3 - Employer or Owner Project Specific Training. Each Employee shall be on the payroll and paid while receiving PART 3 training.

The CODC Harassment Policy and Procedures, including the provisions regarding General Harassment and as amended from time to time shall be the minimum standard of this agreement.

10:02 Skills Enhancement Training Program

To maintain the skills of Journeypersons and Apprentices at the highest level, the Employer and the Local Union may agree to jointly sponsor short term training courses.

10:03 The Employer shall provide, where required, safety and protective equipment and clothing, safe scaffolding or ladders, or other similar equipment. It shall be the responsibility of the Employee to inspect equipment and satisfy themself that it is safe and suitable for the purpose for which they intend to use it, and notify the Employer of any need for replacement or added equipment for their safety. Such tools as are supplied by the shop shall be the reasonable responsibility of the Employee concerned.

An Employee found abusing Company tools shall replace the tools or be subject to immediate dismissal.

- 10:04 An Employee shall not be discriminated against for refusing to work with unsafe tools, equipment, and/or conditions.
- 10:05 When an Employee is hurt on the job, they shall be paid the days wages plus any room and board, travelling or transportation expenses, should any apply upon presenting a doctor's certificate. If an Employee goes on compensation, they shall be provided with transportation from the site to the place of hiring, and when applicable, travel time at their regular rate of pay. Employees going on compensation shall not be terminated after the compensation period has elapsed; they shall be put back to work provided work is available.
- 10:06 The Union agrees to reimburse the Employer for any cost resulting from a pre-access Alcohol & Drug test that is missed without a bona fide reason.

ARTICLE 11:00 STATUTORY HOLIDAYS

11:01 When worked, the Employer agrees to pay for Statutory Holidays as listed below at double time the rate:

New Year's Day
Family Day
Good Friday
Victoria Day
Canada Day

Labour Day
Thanksgiving Day
Remembrance Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day

Saskatchewan Day

- 11:02 No work shall be performed on Labour Day, except where safety or life or property make it necessary.
- 11:03 Statutory Holidays to be paid for at a rate of four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the Employee's total wages exclusive of overtime, and be paid hourly as part of the wage package on the Employee's regular pay day.

When a Statutory Holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the next following working day shall be taken as an alternate day off. When two (2) Statutory Holidays fall on a succeeding Saturday and Sunday, the following Monday and Tuesday shall be taken as alternate days off.

ARTICLE 12:00 ANNUAL HOLIDAY PAY

- 12:01 Each employee shall be entitled to three (3) weeks annual vacation. Holiday Pay shall be based on six (6) percent of the Employees total gross earnings and be paid as part of the hourly wage package on the Employee's regular pay day.
- 12:02 As per the Saskatchewan Employment Act, after ten (10) years of continuous service with an Employer, each employee shall be entitled to four (4) weeks annual vacation. This holiday Pay shall be based on eight (8) percent of the Employees total gross earnings and be paid as part of the hourly wage package on the Employee's regular pay day.

ARTICLE 13:00 COMMERCIAL "CORE" WAGE RATES "TOTAL PACKAGE"

Includes basic wage rate, stat holiday pay, vacation pay, and the contributions made on behalf of the Employees as outlined in Articles 18:03, 19:01, 20:03, 21:01, 22:01, 23:01 and 24:01.

13:01 The total minimum wage package for work performed during a regular working day and a regular working week, effective August 11, 2024, shall be:

Classification	%	Hours	Total Package Aug. 11, 2024	Total Package Aug. 17, 2025	Total Package Aug. 16, 2026	Total Package Aug. 15, 2027
Level Two Journeyperson			\$51.14	\$53.24	\$54.78	\$56.36
Level One Journeyperson	100	Passed Exam	\$48.92	\$51.03	\$52.56	\$54.14
4 th Year Apprentice	90	7,200+	\$44.39	\$46.31	\$47.73	\$49.18
4 th Year Apprentice	85	5,401 - 7,199	\$42.12	\$43.97	\$45.30	\$46.69
3 rd Year Apprentice	75	3,601 - 5,400	\$37.59	\$39.26	\$40.47	\$41.72
2 nd Year Apprentice	60	1,801 - 3,600	\$30.77	\$32.20	\$33.22	\$34.26
1st Year Apprentice	55	0 - 1,800	\$26.31	\$27.64	\$28.60	\$29.58
Utility Worker			\$21.40	\$22.58	\$23.40	\$24.25

Apprentices Basic Wage Schedule (4th Year to 1st Year) will be pro-rated in accordance with the Level One Journeyperson wage rate.

13:03 "A" Foreperson- 112.5% of Level Two Journeyperson Basic Hourly Rate

"B" Foreperson- 105% of Level Two Journeyperson Basic Hourly Rate

Forepersons certified in the CODC Better SuperVision course, UA Foreperson course, or equivalent shall be paid 15% above the Journeyperson rate.

*UA Foreperson course includes completion of the classroom component, Leadership for Safety Excellence and the on-the-job course field evaluation report.

Level One Journeyperson Supervisor shall be paid as per mutual arrangement between the Supervisor and the Company.

- 13:04 This agreement may provide, when approved by the Local Union, a classification of Metal Trades Worker.
- 13:05 Apprentice to Journeyperson Ratio, as specified in the Plumbing and Steamfitting Apprenticeship Regulations, will apply. Final level apprentices shall be excluded from the ratio.
- 13:06 Wages shall be paid every second week and shall be paid by way of negotiable cheque or by electronic direct deposit into the Employee's bank account of choice at no cost to the Employee. A printed confirmation of earnings and deductions shall be mailed to the Employee's address on record or sent digitally if the Employee provides the Employer with an email address. Hold back pay periods to be established on a project or shop basis. Hold back period not to exceed one (1) week.

The work week, for payroll purposes, shall end on Saturday.

Payroll errors will be rectified on the next scheduled pay run. Should the error not be rectified on the next scheduled pay run, the Employer will pay a penalty of two (2) hours per regular working day at straight time rates until payment is made.

13:07 Utility Worker Ratio may be seven (7) United Association Tradesworker of any classification to one (1) Utility Worker, unless otherwise stipulated in Project or Enabling Agreements.

ARTICLE 14:00 APPRENTICES

14:01 Excluding conflicting sections, the Apprentice working under the terms of this agreement shall be governed by the appropriate sections of the UNITED ASSOCIATION LOCAL UNION 179 APPRENTICESHIP STANDARDS FOR THE PIPE TRADES INDUSTRY OF SASKATCHEWAN, and as set forth by the Joint United Association/Employer Training Committee.

ARTICLE 15:00 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ARBITRATION

- 15:01 All differences between the Employer and the Union concerning the interpretation, application, operation, or an alleged violation of this agreement shall be settled by negotiation as hereinafter provided without stoppage of work or lockout.
- 15:02 An Employee and/or Employer shall first take up any grievance with the Shop Steward. If the grievance cannot be settled by the Shop or Job Steward within fourty eight (48) hours, it shall be produced in writing and presented to the Union Business Agent or other Officer of the Local Union who shall discuss the matter with the Management of the Employer involved immediately. If the grievance is then not settled to the satisfaction of the Employer and the Union within seventy two (72) hours, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, there shall be a Grievance Committee consisting of three (3) Employers and three (3) Local Union Members, to represent each of the respective parties to this agreement. This Committee must hand down a decision within three (3) calendar days of the hearing of the dispute; however, this time may be extended upon receipt of a registered letter or electronic submission by either party giving an acceptable reason for the delay.
- 15:03 Failing a satisfactory settlement to Employer and Union, under the provisions of Article 15:02 above, this matter shall be referred without delay to a Board of Arbitration of one (1) Employer and one (1) Local Union Member and they shall agree upon a Chairperson or the Minister of Labour, when no agreement can be reached on the selection of a Chairperson. The Union and the Employer shall, in good faith, attempt to pre-select potential Chairperson or persons to act as a tentative Arbitration Chairperson.

ARTICLE 16:00 | JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES

16:01 Jurisdictional disputes shall be settled in accordance with the procedures as set forth by the Impartial Dispute Board for the settlement of jurisdictional disputes, or any successor agency of the Building Trades Department, when the parties to this agreement mutually agree to each application of this procedure.

ARTICLE 17:00 JOINT COMMITEE BOARD

- 17:01 The Employer through their association of those members signatory to the Provincial Plumber Agreement, and the Union, shall make provision to form a "JOINT COMMITEE BOARD". The said Board shall be established at the earliest possible date and consist of four (4) Employers and four (4) from the Local Union. Consideration will be given to the Employers and the Union representatives who represent their respective organizations on the Commercial Negotiating Committee.
- 17:02 The Joint Committee Board shall be concerned with reviewing the operation of the agreement, human resource development, supply of labour, and general technical and economic conditions of the Plumbing, Pipefitting, and Air Conditioning Industry, and may make recommendations to the parties for the benefit of the Industry and the general public, and may establish rules and regulations which will govern the conduct of the Employers or the Union Members, including structuring and overseeing the fundamental structure of the United Association Mentorship Program. The Board will establish a set of rules to govern the operation and procedures of the Board.

ARTICLE 18:00 EDUCATIONAL TRUST FUND

- 18:01 The Employer and the Union agree to participate in an Educational Trust Fund for the development of skills of Journeypersons and Apprentices in the Pipefitting and Plumbing Industry.
- 18:02 Employers signatory to this agreement and the Union, agree to form a joint and equal Education Trust Fund Committee, which shall also act as the "Joint Training Committee". Said Committee to be composed of no less than four (4) members representing the Employers signatory to this agreement, and no less than four (4) Journeypersons United Association Members representing the Local Union, two (2) of whom shall represent the Commercial Sector, and two (2) the Industrial Sector of Local 179. Said Committee to be responsible for the joint administration of the said Trust Fund.
- 18:03 The Employer shall contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour performed by their Employee(s) covered by the terms of this agreement; and shall submit such contributions to a Trust Account designated by the Trust Fund Committee. Contributions will be made on the basis of full or half hours.
 - All monies paid by the Employer to the Education Trust Fund shall be in addition to the hourly wage rates established in the agreement and in no case shall the Employer deduct any such amounts for the Employee's wages.
- 18:04 All such contributions shall be submitted monthly to the above-mentioned Educational Trust Fund Deposit Account on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month for which such contributions are payable.
- 18:05 The terms of the Education Trust Fund shall not be negotiable under the terms of any Collective Bargaining Agreement. Only that portion pertaining to the number of cents per hour earned may be negotiated in each succeeding agreement.
- 18:06 The Employer and the Union agree to comply with all the provisions and requirements of the Educational Trust Fund and the Declaration of Trust established between the Employer and the Union dated April 1, 1969, and amended July 13, 1970, and with such rules and regulations as the Trustees deem necessary for the successful operation of the said Trust Fund.
- 18:07 In case of failure of the Employer to contribute into the Fund on the due date, the Union or the Trustees in their joint names, may take legal action against the Employer for recovery of the amount due.

ARTICLE 19:00 HEALTH AND WELFARE

19:01 The Employer agrees to contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) covered by the terms of this agreement; and shall submit such contributions to a Trust Fund Deposit Account designated by the Union and the Employer. Contributions will be made on the basis of full or half hours.

All amounts paid by the Employer to the Health and Welfare Trust Fund shall be made in addition to the hourly wage rates established in the agreement and in no case shall the Employer deduct any such amounts from the Employee's wages.

- 19:02 All contributions shall be submitted monthly to the above specified Health and Welfare Trust Fund Deposit Account on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month for which such contributions are payable.
- 19:03 In the case of failure of the Employer to contribute into the Fund on the due date, the Union or the Trustees in their joint names, may take legal action against the Employer for recovery of the amount due.
- 19:04 The Trustees shall have full authority by majority vote with equal representation on both sides, to determine the amounts and select and enter into the forms of insurance required, and shall be responsible for the administration of the Plan, increasing and decreasing of benefits payable and the eligibility of claims payable, including any necessary plan adjustments to prevent duplication of contributions and coverage in the event of compulsory government legislation.
- 19:05 The terms of the Health and Welfare Plan shall not be negotiable under the terms of any Collective Bargaining Agreement. Only that portion pertaining to the number of cents per hour earned may be negotiated in each succeeding agreement.
- 19:06 The Employer and the Union agree to comply with all the provisions and requirements of the Health and Welfare Trust Fund and the Declaration of Trust established between the Employer and the Union dated April 1, 1969, and amended July 13, 1970, and with such rules and regulations as the Trustees of the Fund deem necessary for the successful operation of the said Trust Fund.
- 19:07 The Employers from their Group, and the Union, shall select an equal number of Trustees to the above-mentioned Health and Welfare Trust Fund. The Trustees so selected shall not exceed eight (8) in number. In the event of any Trustee ceasing to act, they shall be replaced by another Trustee to be selected by the party who had selected the Trustee who ceases to act.
- 19:08 Only members of the United Association in good standing, or as otherwise specified by the Union, shall be eligible for any benefits under the Health and Welfare Plan, unless and until any other arrangement is made between the Trustees and the Local Union.

19:09 Employee and Family Assistance Plan

The CODC PRO Care Plan is an industry-funded employee and family assistance plan for employees and their eligible family members according to the participation of sponsoring organizations and employers as well as Plan eligibility rules.

Employees must be enrolled in the Plan by their employer to become eligible for Plan benefits, subject to the Plan eligibility rules. An individual employee cannot self-enroll in the Plan.

Remittances and Reports

Employers are required to remit the Contract Administration and Industry Development fees in Article 30:00 along with the **CODC Employer Report Form** and monthly **employee**

data to CODC by the 15th of the month following the month in which the hours were worked. This will also facilitate the confidential determination of eligibility by the EFAP provider for the CODC PRO Care Plan.

The data is to be submitted in the following way:

Entering the data manually on the secure CODC CONx website https://www.codcconx.com

OR

Uploading an excel spreadsheet in the <u>required format</u> to the website (a sample spreadsheet can be downloaded from the website)

Hard copies of data will not be accepted.

ARTICLE 20:00 PENSION TRUST FUND

- 20:01 The Employer and the Union agree that a Pension Plan shall be established for Employees identified in the terms of this agreement.
- 20:02 Selection, implementation, and administration of the Pension Plan will be carried out and continued by the Trustees of the Health and Welfare Trust Fund.
- 20:03 The Employer agrees to contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) covered by the terms of the agreement; and shall submit such contributions to a Trust Fund Deposit Account as designated by the Union and Employer Trustees of the Pension Trust Fund.

Contributions will be made on the basis of full or half hours and all contributions shall be submitted monthly on or before the fifteenth (15th) of the month following the month for which such contributions are payable.

All amounts paid by the Employer to the Pension Trust Fund shall be in addition to the hourly wage rates established in the agreement and in no case shall the Employer deduct any such amounts from the Employee's wages.

The Employer shall contribute to the Pension Fund on behalf of each Apprentice, based on the following:

Year One No pension contributions

Year Two 2nd twelve months 60% of Level Two Journeyperson pension

Year Three 3rd twelve months 75% of Level Two Journeyperson pension

Year Four a period of at least 12 months 85% of Level Two Journeyperson pension

Year Four completion of Level 4 90% of Level Two Journeyperson pension

20:04 In the event the Employer fails to remit the appropriate Pension Trust Fund contributions in the specified account on the due date, the Union or Trustees in their joint names, may take legal action against the Employer for recovery of the amount due.

- 20:05 The terms of the Pension Trust Fund and Plan shall not be negotiable under the terms of any Collective Bargaining Agreement. Only that portion pertaining to the number of cents per hour earned may be negotiated in each succeeding agreement.
- 20:06 Pension contributions do not apply to the classification of Utility Worker.

Pension contributions do not apply to the first (1st) one thousand (1000) hours worked by a *Probationary Member ****. The hours worked by a Probationary Member for the purpose of determining the commencement of contributions to the Pension Trust Fund shall be the hours worked that have been recorded by the Health and Welfare Trust Fund.

ARTICLE 21:00 SASKATCHEWAN PROVINCIAL PIPE TRADES ASSOCIATION INDUSTRY SERVICE TRUST FUND

- 21:01 The Employer shall contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) covered by the terms of the CORE Agreement and shall submit such contributions to a S.P.P.T.A. Trust Account in the Province of Saskatchewan, as designated by the Trust Committee as a Trust Fund Deposit account. (Note: five cents (\$0.05) per hour of the above-mentioned contribution has been negotiated to offset the costs of administering the safety training described in Article 10:01. Fifteen cents (\$0.15) will be internally allocated to the Organizing Fund. Five cents (\$0.05) will be internally allocated to the UA Local 179 Future Building Fund. Ten cents (\$0.10) will be internally allocated to the International Organizing Fund. One Cent (\$0.01) will be internally allocated to the Helmets to Hardhats program.
- 21:02 All such contributions shall be submitted monthly to the above Industry Service Trust Fund Deposit Account on/or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month for which they became payable.
- 21:03 All amounts paid by the Employer to the Industry Service Trust Fund shall be in addition to the hourly wage rates established in this Agreement and in no case shall the Employer deduct any such amounts from the Employees' wages.
- 21:04 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, or which might be construed to the contrary, as herein before set forth, the said Fund shall be used to promote the mechanical unionized sector, to support the United Association Market Recovery Program, and in no way shall the said Fund be used to damage the reputation of either the Employers or the Union or to propose or publicize by any means whatsoever anything concerning labour grievances, disputes, strikes, lockouts, or impending litigation between the contributors and the Union(s). A regular audited statement showing all disbursements of funds shall be given to the CLR Construction Labour Relations Association of Saskatchewan Inc. when requested.

ARTICLE 22:00 CANADIAN U.A. TRAINING FUND

22:01 The Employer(s) shall contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) covered by the terms of this Agreement to the United Association Canadian Training Trust Fund.

ARTICLE 23:00 POLITICAL ACTION/GOVERNMENT RELATIONS TRUST FUND

- 23:01 The Employer(s) agree to contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) to the United Association Canada Political Action Fund.
- 23:02 The Employer(s) agree to contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) to the United Association Local 179 Government Relations Fund.

ARTICLE 24:00 INTERNATIONAL TRAINING FUND

24:01 The Employer(s) agree to contribute the amount established in the respective wage schedule per hour for every hour of labour worked by their Employee(s) to the United Association International Training Trust Fund.

ARTICLE 25:00 REMITTANCE PROCESS

25:01 Remittance to the Funds listed as a) through g) below are to be recorded on a Form to be provided by Local 179. The Form along with a single cheque for the total of the remittances are to be forwarded monthly on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the month in which they were worked to the "Saskatchewan Piping Industry Trust Fund" c/o The Royal Bank of Canada, P.O. Box 9345, Station A, Toronto, Ontario, M5W 3M2.

Fund	August	August	August	August
	11, 2024	17, 2025	16, 2026	15, 2027
Health & Welfare	2.14	2.39	2.64	2.89
Pension (note optional employee	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00
deduction)				
Education Trust Fund	0.65	0.80	0.80	0.80
Industry Service Fund	0.64	0.64	0.64	0.64
Canadian Training Fund	0.05	0.05	0.05	0.05
Political Action Fund UA Canada	0.02	0.02	0.02	0.02
Government Relations Fund UA	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.01
Local 179				
International Training Fund	0.05	0.05	0.05	0.05
Total Remittance	7.56	7.96	8.21	8.46

ARTICLE 26:00 PROVISIONS FOR OTHER RELATED AGREEMENTS

- 26:01 It is agreed to by the Union that the Employer, by virtue of signing and honouring the "COMMERCIAL PROVINCIAL PLUMBER AGREEMENT", may participate and become signatory and participate in other agreements:
 - a) Project Agreements
 - b) Residential Agreements (walk-up, and wood frame residential type buildings)
 - c) Speculative Agreements
 - d) Service and Jobbing Repair Agreements
 - e) Sewer and Water Agreements
 - f) In-House Fabrication Agreements
 - g) Other types of Agreements, as the need arises
- 26:02 It is agreed by the Employer that by signing the Commercial Provincial Plumber Agreement and/or any other subsequent related agreements as listed in Article 20:01, the Employer agrees to perform their work with United Association Labour.
- 26:03 UNITED ASSOCIATION COMMERCIAL MARKET RECOVERY AND ORGANIZATION PROGRAM: The United Association instituted a Commercial Market Recovery and Organization Program (also referred to as the "Fightback Program") jointly with a number of independent commercial union employers in May, 1984, by implementing and activating the Commercial Provincial Plumber Agreement and by use of enabling conditions, targeting agreements and other forms of initiatives. The Commercial Market Recovery and Organization Program has been extended since its inception and will remain in effect at least until December 31, 2000. Notwithstanding the expiry date of the Commercial Provincial Plumber Agreement, the United Association agrees to continue the Program until December 31, 2000, and thereafter for such period of time as may be necessary to fulfil any commitments made with Employers. The concept of this Program is to provide Employers' signatory to the Commercial Provincial Plumber Agreement with an added tool to assist Employers and the United Association to resolve problems caused by non-union, double-breasted, merit-shop or union-of-convenience contractors operating in the Province of Saskatchewan.

The implementation of the Commercial Market Recovery and Organization Program, including use of Targeted Project and Enabling Agreements, will be under the control of the United Association's Local Union 179 operating through the Saskatchewan Provincial Pipe Trades Association, Local Union 179 is committed to the continuation of the Program in the commercial sector to achieve the objects of the Program as defined in the Commercial Market Recovery and Organization Agreement dated the 1st day of MARCH, 1998.

Procedures for implementation of the Targeted and Enabling Project Agreements is outlined and attached as an appendix to this agreement.

26:04 SPECULATIVE AGREEMENTS: The United Association and Local 179 promotes the development of speculative-type agreements to supplement the United Association Fightback, Market Recovery, and Organizing Programs. The Provincial Plumber Agreement will provide the framework for signatory Employers and the Union to develop meaningful and strong speculative programs. The guiding principles around the development of the speculative programs must:

- Expand the Employers mechanical operations in new markets.
- Expand the Employers mechanical operations in highly competitive markets where a strong non-union or anti-union presence exists.
- Development of joint venture business strategies to assist the United Association in organizing unrepresented Employers and Employees.
- Expand the job markets to members of the United Association.
- Develop strategies within the confines of the United Association and its Employers to structure a strong partnership for the development of human resources, on-the-job, and technical skill training of workers.

The structural framework to develop speculative-type programs will require:

- The Employer to develop a comprehensive business plan outlining short, medium, and long-term goals.
- Goals and strategies to expand the Employers operations into new and existing markets.
- The Union and the Employer will in partnership develop the joint venture plan for the expansion of the Employers operation and for the creation of new and additional jobs for members of the United Association.
- Examples of speculative target sectors of the mechanical industry are:
 - o Service and repair work
 - o Residential and apartment-type construction
 - o Long-term maintenance of government and publicly-owned buildings
 - Mechanical servicing, alteration and repairing of commercial businesses such as;
 malls, hotels, hospitals, schools, etc.
- 26:05 UNITED ASSOCIATION MENTORSHIP PROGRAM: Through the Joint Committee Board, the Commercial Provincial Plumber Agreement will provide for the development and implementation of the United Association Mentorship Program. The Program will provide the utilization of retired or disabled members the opportunity to extend their careers by becoming industry trainers. The Joint Committee Board will be assisted by the Joint Training Committee of Local 179 in structuring and monitoring the Program.
- 26:06 The Union agrees that it will honour and supply United Association Labour to the Employer for the duration of all signed agreements, provided the Employer honours the provisions of Article 21:02.

ARTICLE 27:00 PRODUCTIVITY ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE

- 27:01 The Employer and their Employees who are employed under the terms of this agreement, shall establish a "PRODUCTIVITY ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE" for the purpose of improving upon the Employer/Employee relationship, promote the marketing of United Association Labour, and productivity and quality of work performed on the job sites.
- 27:02 The Union agrees that it will provide the catalyst, and through its representatives, participate in the organization of making the said Productivity Enhancement Committee work. A senior

- official of the Local Union will make themself available to assist the Committee, and act as Chairperson, should he be called upon to do so.
- 27:03 When an Employer and their Employees enter into a Productivity Enhancement Arrangement. The Productivity Enhancement Committee meetings will be held at least three (3) times yearly, the Committee would be comprised of the Employer and all their United Association Employees. Together they shall develop the process, format, the agenda, and the schedule to implement the program.

ARTICLE 28:00 EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM

- 28:01 The Employer may, jointly with the Employees, develop an appropriate "EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM".
- 28:02 It is incumbent upon the Union, that when the Employer and their Employees develop an appropriate "EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM", that the Union will assist in promoting and organizing the workings of the said "EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM" by providing the Program with whatever assistance it may require.
- 28:03 It will be incumbent upon the Employer, that when other related agreements are specified in Article 20:01 are entered into between the Employer and the Union, the Employer jointly with their Employees, will develop an appropriate "EMPLOYEE LABOUR INCENTIVE PROFIT-SHARING PROGRAM".

ARTICLE 29:00 BUILDING TRADES PER CAPITA

29:01 The Employer agrees to deduct from each Employee covered by the terms of this Agreement, ten cents (\$0.10) per hour for each hour worked by the Employee. Such deduction(s) to be remitted not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the following month and made payable to Local Union 179. The Local Union shall forward said monies to the Saskatchewan Provincial Building and Construction Trades Council (SPB & CTC) at 1-1334 Wallace Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, S4N 3Z4. The Local Union is to receive a list showing the amounts and a list of names from whom such deductions were made.

ARTICLE 30:00 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT FEES

30:01 Contract Administration and Industry Development Fees have been committed to develop and maintain Collective Bargaining Agreements and to create, support and promote programs to continually enhance the unionized construction product.

The CODC Construction Opportunities Development Council Inc. ("CODC") has been incorporated to administer funds contributed on behalf of both the Saskatchewan Provincial Building and Construction Trades Council ("SPB & CTC") and CLR Construction Labour

Relations Association of Saskatchewan Inc. ("CLR"). CODC will allocate the contributions to the respective organizations as provided for in this Article.

30:02 Each Employer subject to this Agreement shall contribute the following for all hours worked by each Employee:

CLR \$0.10/hour CODC Fund \$0.06/hour

TOTAL \$0.16/hour

The rate of fees contributed on behalf of CLR may be changed at any time during the term of this Agreement by written notice to the Employer by CLR.

- 30:03 Each Employer shall remit total contributions in this Article no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following, together with the Report Form provided for this purpose to CODC Construction Opportunities Development Council Inc., P.O. Box 4019, Regina, SK S4P 3R9.
- 30:04 The Union shall provide a summary of the total hours worked by Employees for each Employer on a monthly basis and shall submit the list to CODC by the fifteenth (15th) of the month following.
- 30:05 In the event of a failure on the part of any Employer to contribute the funds as required in this Article, the SPB & CTC or CLR may collect the dues as a debt payable by application to the Labour Relations Board and/or by other civil action, or may collect the dues by way of a grievance filed, notwithstanding any other provision in this Collective Agreement, by either the SPB & CTC or CLR in its own name against the subject Employer. Such a grievance may be referred by the SPB & CTC or CLR to arbitration without being processed through any intervening steps other than written notice of the grievance and the reference of the grievance arbitration. The parties to the grievance for the purposes of appointment of the Arbitrator shall be the SPB & CTC or CLR and the subject Employer. The unsuccessful party shall pay the costs of the Arbitrator. The SPB & CTC or CLR may not, however, simultaneously pursue a violation of this Article through application to the Labour Relations Board and/or other civil action and through the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 31:00 CONTINUITY OF WORK

31:01 During the lifetime of this agreement, the Union agrees there will be no strikes, slowdowns or picketing, or any other similar act which will interfere with the regular schedule of work; and the Employer agrees there will be no lockout.

Trade Division Chairperson

	ERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND CAUSED IT TO BE SIGNED BY ITATIVE(S) AS OF THE10thDAY OF _ Septemnber, 2024.
113 DOLT AUTHORIZED REFRESEN	TATIVE(3) A3 OF THETOTILDAT OFSeptember_, 2024.
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF:	LOCAL 179 OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN
	AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA
	INDUSTRI OF THE ONFIDE STITLESTING GRANDS
[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]	[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]
Michael McLean	Mitchell Grenier
Business Manager	Business Agent
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF:	CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF
SIGNED ON BEIMER OF	SASKATCHEWAN INC.
[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]	[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]
Ron Balzer	Warren Douglas

CLR Executive Director

27 | Page

APPENDIX "A" - DEFINITIONS

1. Definitions

LEVEL TWO JOURNEYPERSON:

Is defined as a United Association Member with two (2) years of Journeyperson experience, and has obtained a second Pipe Trades Classification or a General Gas Fitter Installers License. Examples: A Plumber with a Steamfitter/Pipefitter Journeyperson Classification [or] or a General Gas Fitter Installers License. A Steamfitter/Pipefitter with a Plumber Journeyperson Classification [or] a General Gas Fitter Installers License. A Journeyperson Plumber or Steamfitter/Pipefitter with five (5) years of Journeyperson experience will not be required to have a second Pipe Trades Classification to qualify for the Journeyperson rate of pay.

LEVEL ONE JOURNEYPERSON:

Is defined as a United Association Member who has successfully completed the Apprenticeship Program and obtained Provincial Journeyperson Classification and other requirements that are approved by the Union's Joint Training Committee.

PROBATIONARY MEMBER:

For the purpose of this agreement a Probationary member is defined as a Journeyperson or an Apprentice who was a non-Union member before commencing their employment with a signatory Employer.

The Probationary Member status will remain for the first (1st) one thousand (1000) hours worked. The hours worked by a Probationary Member for the purpose of determining the status shall be the hours worked that have been recorded by the Health and Welfare Trust Fund.

APPRENTICES:

The rates of pay for indentured Apprentices, effective August 11, 2024 shall be:

Year One	-	1st twelve months	55%	0 - 1,800 hours
Year Two	-	2 nd twelve months	60%	1,801 - 3,600 hours
Year Three	-	3 rd twelve months	75%	3,600 - 5,400 hours
Year Four	-	a period of at least 12 months	85%	5,400 - 7,199 hours
Year Four	-	completion of Level 4	90%	7200 hours

On the recommendation of the Joint Training Committee, this clause may come under review during the term of this Agreement. Joint Training Committee recommendations shall be submitted for ratification by both parties.

The Apprenticeship Standards for Plumbing and Steamfitting/Pipefitting adopted by the Joint Training Committee of Saskatchewan representing U.A. Local Union 179 and the certified mechanical and piping Employers signatory to a United Association Collective Agreement constitutes part of this Appendix.

Apprentices will not be paid beyond their demonstrated Saskatchewan Apprenticeship and Trade Certification Commission level, unless mutually agreed upon by the Employer and the Union.

NOTE: The classification of Level One Journeyperson is for the purpose of this Agreement only and does not apply to any apprentice rules or tradespersons qualification matters. In addition, Level One Journeyperson Classification applies to the Plumber and Steamfitter/Pipefitter Trade only.

UTILITY WORKER:

Is defined as a worker who will be utilized as a helper to the Journeypersons and Apprentices, and perform other menial tasks that may be assigned to him/her. The ratio of Utility Worker to other Regular Workers (Journeypersons and Apprentices) shall be seven (7) Regular to one (1) Utility; or as otherwise approved and adjusted by the Local Union through Project or Enabling Agreements.

When selecting new Apprentices for the United Association Employer Apprenticeship Program, those Utility Workers who meet the Apprenticeship Standards as outlined in this agreement, shall be given first option for Apprenticeship.

WELDER:

For the purpose of this agreement, a Welder is a member who is hired and employed as a Welder having an updated and valid minimum WELDING PERFORMANCE CERTIFICATE STANDARD OF P1-F3&F4 as issued by the Labour Department, Province of Saskatchewan (Boiler and Pressure Vessel Branch) or any other subsequent authorized agency. The rate of pay for the Welder classification shall be equivalent to the "Level Two Journeyperson" classification.

COMPANY

The term "Company", for the purpose of this agreement, shall mean the Mechanical (Plumbing and Heating) Contractor referred to in this agreement, engaged in Plumbing and Steamfitting/Pipefitting trades as defined in the Apprenticeship and Trade Certification Commission Regulations under The Apprenticeship and Trade Certification Act, Province of Saskatchewan, and will further include any shareholder(s) holding a major equity or control therein who shall perform or cause to be performed, any work covered by this agreement under its own name or under the associate, combination or joint venture. The term "Company" will include any "Parallel Business, Service Company, or Holding Company(s)" who are employing or not employing workers; and "New Acquisition Company(s)" who are employing workers engaged in the Mechanical Trades defined above.

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE OF LOCAL 179:

The Committee is comprised of the Director of Canadian Affairs or their appointee the International Representative for the Western Canadian Region; the Business Manager of Local Union 179; and the Commercial Sector Business Agent as appointed by the Local Union.

PERMANENT EMPLOYEE:

For the purpose of this agreement, means an Employee who has been on the Employer's payroll for a period of thirty (30) calendar days.

QUALIFIED

Shall mean to also include certification in the CODC Interactive "Rights and Responsibilities" course and the SCOT course or equivalent.

2. Forepersons

- a) It is the intent of both parties to this Agreement that the term "Foreperson" shall mean any Level Two Journeyperson Plumber/Pipefitter of a signatory Employer who is designated by such Employer to supervise the activities of other Employees.
- b) The Employer shall designate a Level Two Journeyperson Plumber/Pipefitter as a "B" Foreperson when five (5) to ten (10) workers (inclusive of the foreperson) are employed on any jobsite. The Employer shall designate a Journeyperson Plumber/Pipefitter as an "A" Foreperson when over ten (10) workers are employed on any jobsite.

3. Vacation Pay

Each Employee shall be entitled to annual vacation and vacation pay in accordance with the Saskatchewan Employment Act. As a minimum each Employee shall be entitled to three (3) weeks annual vacation and be paid vacation pay based on six percent (6%) of the Employee's total gross earnings and shall be paid weekly, or upon termination of employment.

APPENDIX "B" - ENABLING

REFERENCE: ARTICLE TWENTY-ONE - PROVISIONS FOR OTHER RELATED AGREEMENTS:

IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT OR ENABLING AGREEMENT PROCEDURES

- 1. In this Appendix the term "enabled project" means a project or job covered by the Enabling Clause Information Sheet referred to in Item 4.
- 2. The Local Union may, in order to secure jobs for its members and contracts for Employers who are bound by this Agreement but are bidding on contracts against contractors who are not parties to this Collective Agreement, amend or delete any of the terms or conditions in this Collective Agreement subject to the terms of this Appendix.
- 3. An Employer wishing to obtain agreement for an enabled project shall complete the Enabling Clause Information Sheet in the form annexed to this Collective Agreement and forward it to the Local Union.
- 4. In the event that the Local Union is prepared to amend or delete any of the terms or conditions in this Collective Agreement it shall, under the signature of the Local Union Business Representative or their designate, complete the Enabling Clause Information Sheet by certifying those terms or conditions which are to be amended or deleted and, in the case of an amendment, particulars of the amendment.
- 5. The Local Union shall, at the time when the Enabling Clause Information Sheet is signed by the Local Union and is returned to the Employer, advise CLR Construction Labour Relations Association of Saskatchewan Inc. that it has agreed to an enabled project. The Local Union agrees, subject to the terms of this Appendix, to offer the same terms and conditions to other Employers bidding on the enabled project.
- 6. The Employer shall, upon receipt of the Enabling Clause Information Sheet signed by the Local Union, be entitled to bid on the enabled project using the terms contained in the Enabling Clause Information Sheet. Except as specifically modified in the Enabling Clause Information Sheet, the Employer shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this Collective Agreement.
- 7. The parties specifically acknowledge and agree that the issuance of an Enabling Clause Information Sheet shall be at the sole discretion of the Local Union. The parties further acknowledge and agree as follows:
 - a) the terms and conditions granted in respect to an enabled project apply only to Employers, whether contractors, subcontractors or otherwise, who are parties to this Collective Agreement.
 - b) where an Employer subcontracts work to a party who is not a party to this Collective Agreement, the Enabling Clause Information Sheet signed by the Local Union shall be of no effect and the Employer shall not be entitled to rely upon any of the terms and conditions set out in the Enabling Clause Information Sheet but shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Collective Agreement.

- where an Employer is, in the opinion of the Local Union, in any way, associated or affiliated with, or the directors, officers or employees of an Employer carry on the same or a similar business through, an entity that is not a party to this Collective Agreement (such an entity being hereafter referred to as a "related organization"), that Employer shall not be eligible to obtain or rely upon an Enabling Clause Information Sheet under this Appendix nor shall such Employer be entitled to any information on the terms of an Enabling Clause Information Sheet issued to any other Employer under this Appendix unless the Employer provides assurances, satisfactory to the Local Union, that the enabled project will only be bid by it and not by any related organization.
- 8. The terms of an Enabling Clause Information Sheet shall continue for the duration of the enabled project notwithstanding that this Collective Agreement may expire prior to the completion of the project.
- 9. The exercise by the Local Union of any discretion under this Appendix shall not be subject to any grievance or arbitration procedure.

ENABLING CLAUSE INFORMATION SHEET

DATE:	
TO: UA Local 179 Attention: Telephone:	
FROM:	
Telephone:	Fax:
Please accept this as a request to bid the p Provincial Plumber Agreement currently	project outlined herein under the terms of the enabling provisions of the Commercia
PROJECT:	
OWNER:	
LOCATION:	
VALUE:	BID TO:
TENDER CLOSING DATE:	PEAK WORKFORCE:
START DATE:	COMPLETION DATE:
	KNOWN BIDDERS:
UNION	NON-UNION
The following items are agreed to for future projects.	the duration of this project only and shall not be deemed a precedent for
ITEM	DESCRIPTION
All other terms and conditions will be	e as per the current collective bargaining agreement.
UA Local 179 Business Representative	Contractor Representative

APPENDIX "C" - REQUEST FOR WORKERS FORM

CONTRACTOR NAM	ИЕ:		
Phone Number		Email:	
Turnaround or Shutdown Sub & Travel Coveralls Supplied Safety Disc Rights & Responsibilites Work to be Performed:	Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No	Report Job Loc Date R Start T	ted by: to: cation: equired: ime: ation Time:
Trade	Journeyman A	Apprentice Yr.	HOURS
Steamfitter/Pipefitter Plumber Sprinklerfitter Basic Welder F3/4 Stainless/Chrome Welder 6/5 Refrigeration Mechanic Instrument Mechanic Gasfitter Pipefitter/Rigger Fiberglass Conditions of Employment Rates: Industrial GPC NMA	Commercial L Commercial L Commercial R	ightesidentialontractor Safety Policy	5 X 8 () 4 X 10'S () * Note Other ************************ Day Shift Nite Shift **************** Approx. Duration Days Weeks Plus Months Plus () Unknown
Special Requirements:		W X X	
Notes:			
Dwyll		assification - Legend	Ed. of Cro
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	□ SS Stick (F5) □ B Welder (F3/F4) □ Carbon Tig/Stick (F6/F4	Inconel Stick (F43) SS Tig (F6) CWB Flux-cored Other - Specify	☐ Chrome Stick (F4) ☐ Inconel Tig/Stick (F43/F43) ☐ SS Stick Overlay (F5) ☐ SS Chrome Tig Stick (F6/5)

PROVINCIAL RESIDENTIAL AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

EACH OF THE UNIONIZED EMPLOYERS IN THE PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER TRADE DIVISION OF THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY ON WHOSE BEHALF CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC., AS THE REPRESENTATIVE EMPLOYERS' ORGANIZATION HAS ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT (Hereinafter called the "EMPLOYER")

- AND -

UNITED ASSOCIATION LOCAL UNION 179 OF SASKATCHEWAN (Hereinafter called the "UNION")

PURPOSE: The Provincial Residential Agreement is considered an amendment to the current "COMMERCIAL PROVINCIAL PLUMBER AGREEMENT" negotiated between CLR Construction Labour Relations Association of Saskatchewan Inc. and United Association Local Union 179 of Saskatchewan.

SCOPE OF WORK: This agreement applies to any Residential Plumbing and Heating Mechanical construction and maintenance/service work and includes all Residential type of work as defined below.

The term "RESIDENTIAL" for the purpose of this agreement means a building where people reside on a permanent basis.

The term "RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING AND HEATING WORK" for the purpose of this agreement means mechanical work as defined in the Plumber Agreement on combustible builds (wood frame) which will include: apartment block buildings, condominium type residential complexes, senior citizen residential type complexes, row housing type residential complexes, townhouses, sixplexes, fourplexes, and other similar type of housing complexes.

ADOPTION OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE "RESIDENTIAL AGREEMENT": The Employer and the Union acknowledge the "RESIDENTIAL AGREEMENT", and will adopt all the terms and conditions established in the Plumber Agreement negotiated between the Employer and the Union, except for the following:

The minimum total wage package for work performed during a regular working day and a regular working week shall be:

Classification	%	Hours	Aug. 11, 2024	Aug. 17, 2025	Aug. 16, 2026	Aug. 15, 2027
Level Two			\$43.00	\$44.79	\$46.07	\$47.39
Journeyperson Rate						
Level One	100%	Passed JM	\$40.80	\$42.58	\$43.86	\$45.18
Journeyperson Rate		Exam				
4th Year Apprentice	90%	7,200	\$37.01	\$38.65	\$39.82	\$41.04
Rate						
(Completion of Level 4)						
4th Year Apprentice	85%	5,401 -	\$35.12	\$36.69	\$37.81	\$38.98
Rate		7,199				
3rd Year Apprentice	75%	3,601 -	\$31.35	\$32.77	\$33.77	\$34.82
Rate		5,400				
2nd Year Apprentice	60%	1,801 -	\$24.49	\$25.66	\$26.51	\$27.42
Rate		3,600				
1st Year Apprentice	55%	0 - 1,800	\$22.68	\$23.78	\$24.60	\$25.45
Rate						
Utility Worker Rate			\$18.74	\$19.69	\$20.41	\$21.12

a) Pension contributions

- a. Pension contributions will not apply to first and second year apprentices.
- b. Pension contributions for Journeypersons will be at a rate of \$2.00 per hour. A Journeyperson may elect to redirect \$1.02 from their base wage package to the pension plan upon written request.
- b) Article 11 Statutory Holidays is amended to remove recognition of Boxing Day and the statutory Holiday pay will be calculated at 4% of the total wages, exclusive of overtime.
- c) Contributions to the various funds will be pursuant to the approved Wage summary.
- d) Article 13:07 is amended to reflect a 4 UA trades people to 1 utility worker ratio.
- e) A required tool list for the residential sector shall be:

Tool List Residential
1st year Journeyperson - Projects
Updated Plumbing Code
Updated Gas Code
Organized Tool Bag (for storing their personal hand tools)
Multi Screw Driver
Long Flat Blade Screw Driver

14" Aluminum Pipe Wrench

Torch Head
14" Offset Aluminum Pipe Wrench
Screw Driver Extension
1/2" and 3/4" Tight Copper Cutters
Hole Saw Arbor
1" Copper Cutters
Pex Cutting Tool
1/2" Pex Crimp Tool

Ron Balzer

Trade Division Chairperson

3/4" Pex Crimp Tool 25' Measuring Tape Drywall Saw Claw Hammer **Tub Drain Remover** Allen Key Sets metric and imperial 9" Channel Lock Pliers **Service Plumbers** 12" Channel Lock Pliers All project tools and the following: Green Tin Snips Multi Meter Red Tin Snips Gas Monometer 1-10" & 1-8" Crescent Wrench Thermometer Basin Wrench Torpedo Level SIGNED ON BEHALF OF: LOCAL 179 OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA [ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.] [ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.] Michael McLean Mitchell Grenier **Business Manager Business Agent** SIGNED ON BEHALF OF: CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC. [ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.] [ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]

Warren Douglas

CLR Executive Director

37 | Page

Re: UA Canadian Standard for Excellence

[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

EACH OF THE UNIONIZED EMPLOYERS IN THE PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER TRADE DIVISION OF THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY (for Industrial Construction) ON WHOSE BEHALF CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC., AS THE REPRESENTATIVE EMPLOYERS' ORGANIZATION HAS ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT;

(Hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER")

- AND -

LOCAL 179 OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA;

(Hereinafter referred to as the "UNION")

[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]	[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]
For the Union	For the Employer
Signed this <u>10TH</u> day of <u>September</u> , 2024.	
This Letter of Understanding shall expire the same day as Commercial Construction.	the Saskatchewan Plumber/Pipefitter Agreement for
THEREFORE IT IS AGREED that, while it will not form p and endorse the Union's Standard for Excellence Progran	
WHEREAS the United Association of Journeymen and App United States and Canada has developed the Canadian Operating Rules and Regulations;	

38 | Page

[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

EACH OF THE UNIONIZED EMPLOYERS IN THE PLUMBER AND PIPEFITTER TRADE DIVISION OF THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY ON WHOSE BEHALF THE CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC., AS THE REPRESENTATIVE EMPLOYERS' ORGANIZATION HAS ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT;

(Hereinafter Referred to as the "Employer")

- AND -

LOCAL 179 OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA;

(Hereinafter Referred to as the "Union")

RE: Pension Contribution Paid Directly as Wages for Workers aged 71 or older

WHEREAS the Canada Revenue Agency has established that retirement savings plans cannot be made for workers after they turn seventy-one (71) years of age, and

WHEREAS some workers are continuing to work at the age of 71 and beyond, and

WHEREAS it is in the interests of the Employer, the Union and the individual to amend the pension contributions for workers aged 71 or older,

IT is thereby agreed to that the Pension contributions may be paid as wages to these individuals pursuant to the process outlined below.

- The amount of Pension Contribution paid directly shall be treated as wages with a portion removed to cover the relevant industry standard WCB contribution rate and other Employer payroll burdens.
- Further, the remaining portion shall be treated as wages, with the appropriate portion thereof assigned as vacation and holiday pay as per the Agreement requirements.
- As wages, all normal statutory burdens or obligations shall apply (e.g. taxes, and/or EI contributions).
- This program will be cost neutral for the Employer.

This Letter of Understanding shall be in full force and effect from the same date of signing and shall expire the same day as the Saskatchewan Provincial Plumber Commercial Agreement.

Signed this <u>10th</u> day of <u>Se</u>	ptember	, 2024.		
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF:	JOURN AND	179 OF THE UI EYMEN AND APPREI PIPEFITTING INDU S AND CANADA	NTICES OF TH	HE PLUMBING
[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]		[ORIGINAL SIGN	NATURE ON FI	LE.]
Michael McLean Business Manager		Mitchell Greni Business Repr	_	
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF:	CLR ASSO	CONSTRUCTION CIATION OF SASKAT	LABOUR CHEWAN INC	RELATIONS
[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]		[ORIGINAL SIG	NATURE ON FI	LE.]
Ron Balzer Trade Division Chair		Warren Dougla Executive Dire		

40 | P a g e

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

EACH OF THE UNIONIZED EMPLOYERS IN THE PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER TRADE DIVISION OF THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY (FOR COMMERCIAL PLUMBING) ON WHOSE BEHALF CLR CONSTRUCTION LABOUR RELATIONS ASSOCIATION OF SASKATCHEWAN INC., AS THE REPRESENTATIVE EMPLOYERS' ORGANIZATION HAS ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT;

(Hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER")

- AND -

LOCAL 179 OF THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPEFITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA;

(Hereinafter referred to as the "UNION")

Re: Pension Contributions - optional Employee Deduction for the Commercial Agreement

Whereas the parties have entered into a new collective agreement effective August 11, 2024, and

Whereas during the negotiations, the parties agreed to offer more flexibility for employees to make additional contributions to their pension plan,

It has been resolved that:

- 1. The employer shall establish an optional payroll deduction of up to \$3.00 per hour for each employee to be redirected to the pension plan.
 - a. The employee can select a deduction of \$1.00, \$2.00 or \$3.00 per hour worked to be deducted from their paycheque and remitted to the pension plan in addition to the existing employer contribution.
- 2. Employees shall have the option to elect to add the employee deduction one time per year 30 days ahead of the next wage increase, or upon hire-on with a new employer.
- 3. The approved CLR wage summary sheets shall be amended to include a note regarding these optional payroll deductions.
- 4. This is being offered as an option and there is no obligation for an employee to participate in this additional program.

Signed this <u>10th</u> day of <u>September</u> , 2	024.
For the Union,	For the Employer,
_[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]	[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]
[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]	[ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE.]

41 | Page